
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Members Present:   Also Present: 
Bruce Duarte, Chair    Debra Lee, COA Director 
Patricia Costa, Vice-Chair              Pamela Amaral-Lema, COA Administrative Specialist                               
Virginia Morrison, Secretary                          Karen Main, Buttonwood Center Coordinator 
Esperanza Alejandro-Berube   Patricia Foley, Brooklawn Center Coordinator 
Inez Mello      
Stanley Ociesa 
Joan Swain     Excused: 
Mary Sullivan     Jane Stott 
      James Sylvia 
                                                                        Cynthia Wallquist, Director of Community Services 
     
  
The meeting was called to order at 9:07 AM by the Chairman, Bruce Duarte 
 
Secretary’s Report 
 
The board members looked over the minutes from the September 12, 2013 meeting, and Mr. Ociesa reported 
that he was not listed under the board members present.  Mr. Duarte stated that he will be added to the present 
list since he was in attendance for the September 12th advisory board meeting.  Mr. Duarte stated that he has 
been impressed with the detailed minute report and told Ms. Amaral-Lema she has been doing a wonderful job 
on detailing the minutes.     
 
A motion to approve the minutes for September 12th was made by Mr. Ociesa, and seconded by Ms. 
Mello.  The motion was unanimously approved. 
 
Mr. Duarte reported that two senior center coordinators were in attendance to inform the board on what has 
been going on at each of their centers and the new activities they have brought to attract seniors.  Mr. Duarte 
asked Ms. Lee that periodically if the coordinators can attend the advisory board meeting to fill them in on the 
daily ongoing, and also the board may be of assistance to the coordinators with ideas and resources.  Ms. Main, 
Buttonwood senior center coordinator, introduced herself to the members of the board.  Ms. Main replaced 
retired Ms. Spooner on July 1st, 2013, and stated she was fortunate to inherit a center that was well maintained 
and with plenty of volunteer assistance.  Ms. Main stated enclosed in the board members folder there were 
flyers and weekly schedules of the regular activities/programming at the Buttonwood center, and also enclosed 
was a specialized calendar with the specialty events for the months of October and November.  The board 
members asked Ms. Main how the new extended hours at the center (Monday-Friday, 9AM-5PM) were 
working out and Ms. Main stated that there hasn’t been a huge response.  Ms. Main stated probably with the 
new breakfast program coming to fruition that if would be more feasible to have the center open earlier rather 
than later in the day. Mr. Duarte stated that he was concerned with the winter hours and the fact that it will be 
dark starting at 4-4:30pm that they have a fear to be out during the nighttime and also for safety concerns 
regarding ice. The hours of 7:30AM-3:30PM may work out better for the senior center with participation in the 
earlier hours versus the later hours especially with the new launch of the breakfast program at a few of the 

 

 

Council on Aging 
October 17, 2013 – 9:00 AM - Minutes 

181 Hillman Street, Building 9 
 

**View Agenda** 



centers. Ms. Ociesa stated the most important meal of the day is breakfast and it would be great if the center 
will be offering both breakfast and lunch.   Mr. Duarte asked Ms. Lee if the earlier hours would be able to start 
soon.  Ms. Lee stated she had brought this information to Ms. Wallquist and Ms. Wallquist requested to be 
informed of how many seniors are utilizing the center after the hours of 3pm.  Ms. Lee stated they will have to 
justify the change in hours, but it may be possible in the future. Ms. Main stated that she is having a Health Fair 
on October 29th.  She also stated that she had passed out a questionnaire pertaining to what the seniors would 
like to see and overwhelmingly the responses were about nutrition and insurance issues.   Ms. Main stated she 
has added many new programs and has become familiar with the seniors needs and wants pertaining to the 
center.  Mr. Ociesa stated he was impressed with his recent visit at Buttonwood senior center and with Ms. 
Main’s renovations of the senior center and also with the fresh atmosphere she has brought to the center. Also, 
Ms. Main stated that the outside appearance of the center has approved with the Whaling City Festival did 
landscaping to the center, and Mr. Duarte stated that curb appeal is crucial to attract seniors to the center. Mr. 
Duarte asked about Ms. Edward moving to the Hillman St. administrative offices, and Ms. Lee stated the 
change has not begun.  Ms. Lee also stated that Ms. Edwards will still be meeting with the seniors at the various 
centers upon requests. The board members thanked Ms. Main for the wonderful work she has done to the 
Buttonwood senior center, and also to continue in bringing fresh ideas and informative programming for the 
seniors.  
 
Ms. Foley, the Brooklawn senior center, stated she has been at Brooklawn for over a few years.  Ms. Foley 
stated she likes to have “educational parties” which would have refreshments and informative speakers 
regarding an important issue with seniors.  Ms. Foley said that she also had flyers and daily activities sheets in 
the board members’ folders. Ms. Foley stated that she teaches her art class at Brooklawn on Friday mornings.  
She also stated the strength and conditioning class with Larry Bigos has over 20 seniors in the class. Ms. Foley 
stated that the “The Oaks, and Southeastern Mass Health and Rehabilitation center have been great in providing 
refreshments and events to the senior center.  Ms. Foley stated that she had a successful barbeque in the month 
of August with over 30 seniors in attendance.  Ms. Foley stated she also has specialized flyers with all of her 
specific events for the months of October and November.  Ms. Foley stated she is looking for a new Tai Chi 
instructor for the Monday afternoon slot that is currently vacant due to the previous instructor’s lack of 
reliability and participation.  Mr. Duarte asked how the previous class was being paid, and Ms. Foley stated that 
the seniors paid $30 for six weeks. Ms. Lee stated that if we have over ten seniors signed up for the Tai Chi that 
the city of New Bedford will pay for the service.  Ms. Foley stated that she has a Mah Jong plays longer on the 
extended hours on Tuesday, and on Wednesday’s Whist class stays until 4PM.  The choral group meets on 
Thursdays, and rehearses at the Brooklawn senior center.  There is a new trivia group that meets every Monday 
with Bob Branco, and with word of mouth the trivia group has increased participants.  Ms. Costa asked about 
the parking lot renovations at Brooklawn Park.  The parking lot is now complete with a large expanded parking 
lot.  Ms. Foley stated there are a few volunteers who plant and keep up with the flower bed in front of the 
center.  Ms. Mello stated that her friend is involved in an art class with Cindy Riccard who teaches Art in the 
other building at Brooklawn Park.  Ms. Riccard uses oil painting, and Ms. Foley uses acrylic paint. Ms. Foley 
stated she has a craft class every other month provided by the “The Oaks”.   Ms. Foley said since the open 
house in September she has received many walk ins inquiring about the different programming at the center.  
Ms. Foley states there is a Veterans group that meets Mondays-Thursdays at 8AM and there is an avid card 
group at the center. Mr. Ociesa stated there is a large Portuguese population in the north end, and asked Ms. 
Foley how many Portuguese seniors attend the center. Ms. Foley stated there is just one Portuguese couple who 
eat lunch every day. She also said she has over 12 seniors who eat lunch every day which is provided by 
Coastline Elderly Services with a donation of two dollars.  Mr. Duarte had a question for Ms. Foley regarding 
outreach to the Portuguese population in the north end, and also to the high rises to get seniors interested in the 
senior centers.  Mr. Duarte would like more outreach to the Portuguese population for the Brooklawn senior 
center by passing out flyers passing out Portuguese flyers to the nearby homes.  Mr. Duarte and the board 
thanked Ms. Foley on the incredible job she is doing at the Brooklawn senior center. 
 
The board of directors once again congratulated the coordinators on the remarkable job they have been doing 
and they received a round of applause 



 
Old Business 
 
Boston Medical Transportation- Ms. Lee stated that SRTA has taken over the service, and are providing 
Boston Medical Transportation every Tuesday.  Ms. Amaral-Lema makes the appointments and keeps the lines 
of communication open with SRTA.  Ms. Lee also stated that eventually SRTA may add another pickup day 
from New Bedford since the Fall River location has not been used.  The COA has notified the local physicians’ 
offices about the Boston transportation.  Ms. Lee and Ms. Amaral-Lema have a meeting with SRTA next week 
to discuss how the service is working for the seniors in New Bedford.  SRTA has been doing outreach work to 
notify seniors of this service.  
 
Friends of the Elderly-  Ms. Alejandro-Berube has tried to contact Laura Campbell and has not heard from 
them.  Mr. Duarte would like Ms. Lee to send a letter to Ms. Campbell to see if they are still interested in 
volunteering. 
 
Hillman St. Senior Support Center- Mr. Duarte said the Hillman St. senior support center looks great, and 
that a new fresh location gets people energized and optimistic.  Ms. Lee stated that the staff is very please and 
there are just a few little things to be worked out.  The board members stated that the hallway of the Hillman St. 
Senior Support Center needs repair.   
 
New Business 
 
The advisory board decided to forego December’s meeting due to the fact that there are no pressing issues.  The 
next advisory board meeting will be held on Thursday, January 9, 2014 at 9AM. 
 
A motion to not have a meeting in December was made by Ms. Swain and seconded by Ms. Costa.  It was 
unanimously approved.  
 
 
Chairman’s Report- Mr. Duarte 
 
Mr. Duarte stated he has visited the Downtown Senior Center on several occasions and saw that it hasn’t 
increased in senior participants.  Mr. Duarte stated that there are 107 seniors who reside at the New Bedford 
Hotel, and the senior center should have increased seniors.  Ms. Lee stated that she has heard seniors 
complained about the Housing Authority and privacy between activities.  Mr. Duarte stated there is privacy, and 
probably previous issues should be resolved and having outreach work would increase the participation.  Ms. 
Amaral-Lema stated Ms. Duarte, the Downtown coordinator, has done outreach work by placing flyers and 
calendars under the seniors’ apartment doors.  Mr. Duarte applauded the outreach work and that doing this 
continually will improve the senior participation at the center.  Mr. Ociesa stated that if the Downtown senior 
center is not launching well after a while look into closing the center. Mr. Duarte stated he is optimistic since 
hearing about the increase senior participation at Downtown center and that it looks like things will improve.  
The seniors are receptive to Ms. Duarte’s arrival and activities are working out well.    Ms. Alejandro-Berube 
also stated that the COA and advisory board should give Ms. Duarte adequate time to build relationships with 
the seniors and improve senior interaction at Downtown senior center.  Mr. Duarte reported that he is concerned 
in the extended later hours at Buttonwood senior center since it will be getting darker sooner, and probably the 
earlier hours will work out better for the seniors such as 7:30am to 3:30pm.  Mr. Duarte asked Ms. Lee how 
things are going on Mondays at the Hazelwood senior center, and Ms. Lee stated has a new coordinator who 
will be at the center on Mondays, Tuesdays, and Thursdays at Hazelwood senior center.  Ms. Lee and Ms. 
Amaral-Lema spoke highly of Marisol Grant, the new Hazelwood senior center coordinator, by stating she is 
energetic, creative, and ready to bring new interesting and educational programming to Hazelwood.  Ms. Grant 
has already found a Zumba instructor for Mondays at Hazelwood since seniors have been inquiring for a new 
exercise class.  She has over ten seniors who want to participate in the new class which should be starting in 



December.  Ms. Grant is also Spanish speaking and will incorporate this in new programs to attract Spanish 
seniors to the center.  Mr. Duarte stated Ms. Alejandro-Berube could be of assistance to Ms. Grant since she has 
worked with the senior population in the city.  Mr. Duarte said he is impressed with the Brooklawn and 
Buttonwood senior center coordinators and the advisory board will continue to support them and further the 
programs at each of the centers.  
 
Motion to approve the Chairman’s report was made by Ms. Sullivan and seconded by Ms. Swain.  It was 
unanimously approved.   
 
Director’s Report- Ms. Lee 
 
Ms. Lee reported that she and Ms. Amaral-Lema attended the annual Massachusetts Council on Aging 
conference in Sturbridge, MA and stayed overnight.  Ms. Lee stated she was part of a panel presentation on 
Mental Health and Aging 101.  She presented along with two lawyers (spoke about health care proxy and living 
wills) and a licensed social worker (spoke about suicide among the elderly and veterans) all speaking about 
different aspects of aging.  Ms. Lee’s section of the presentation focused on mental illness and different signs of 
symptoms to be aware of in the elderly.  Ms. Lee stated her presentation had over 60 people in attendance.  Ms. 
Lee and Ms. Amaral-Lema attended other seminars regarding hoarding and depression among the elderly.  Mr. 
Duarte asked what the percentage of suicide among the elderly was, and stated he had never really heard of it 
affecting the senior population.  Ms. Lee stated the senior population is the highest percentage to commit 
suicide than any other population. Ms. Costa stated that it goes unannounced among the seniors, because of the 
way they commit the act.  Mr. Duarte stated that alcoholism is on the rise among seniors and Ms. Lee stated 
35% of seniors are drinking excessively. The highest rate of suicide is seniors over 85 years of age.  The board 
members spoke that many seniors don’t have loved ones in their lives and with declining health issues that they 
may resort to other means.   
 
Ms. Lee stated the free transportation is taking off well.  She reported that the COA provides free transportation 
for a blind gentleman who does a trivia group at many of the senior centers.  Ms. Lee stated that she and Ms. 
Amaral-Lema have gone to a few of the New Bedford high rises to inform seniors and the activities 
coordinators to inform them of the free transportation and other events going on through the Council on Aging.   
 
Ms. Lee reported she has turned one of the offices at the Hillman St. Administrative offices into a library, and 
also has a volunteer librarian to log the books and due dates of return. 
 
Ms. Lee stated Shine’s open enrollment has been busy with calls from seniors who are looking into supplement 
plans and have other insurance questions regarding their Medicare.  Ms. Lee has a volunteer, Verna Kendall, 
who assists Ms. Lee every Tuesday with SHINE appointments.   
 
The advisory board decided to forego December’s meeting due to the fact that there are no pressing issues.  The 
next advisory board meeting will be held on Thursday, January 9, 2014 at 9AM. 
 
A motion to not have a meeting in December was made by Ms. Swain and seconded by Ms. Costa.  It was 
unanimously approved.  
 
Ms. Lee stated she and Ms. Amaral-Lema had a meeting with the Fire Department about fire safety with the 
elderly.  The elderly are in the highest percentage of fire accidents.  The Fire Department is receiving a grant to 
help seniors who are unable to afford fire detectors, and/or carbon monoxide detectors.  Also, they would like to 
go to the senior centers and give a presentation on how to safely cook and fire prevention in the home.  Also, 
with the new regulations the Fire Department want to assist seniors in where to place these lifesaving detectors 
in their homes to improve awareness.  Mr. Arruda from the Fire Department asked about the File for Life, 
which helps first responders with vital answers to a person’s health condition that can be of optimal assistance 
in a life threatening situation.   



 
Ms. Lee reported the three main senior centers (Buttonwood, Brooklawn, and Hazelwood) along with the 
administrative offices located on Hillman St. will be collecting pet food to assist seniors through their financial 
difficulties.  Animal control has stated that seniors are giving their pets their meat from their meals on wheels 
lunch. 
 
Ms. Lee reported on the COA’s wish list she is looking into an electronic tracking system which would assist in 
tracking seniors at the various senior centers.  Ms. Lee would like this tracking system at Buttonwood, 
Brooklawn, Hazelwood senior centers.  This electronic tracking system would improve the accuracy of the data 
input on the various grants and it would decrease the number of hours when searching through paperwork to 
finish the grant process. 
 
Motion to approve the Director’s report was made Ms. Sullivan and seconded Ms. Swain.   
 
Director of Community Services Report- Ms. Wallquist 
 
Mr. Duarte read and passed out Ms. Wallquist’s report that she had prepared for the advisory board since she 
was unable to attend the meeting.  
 
A motion to approve the Director of Community Services report was made by Ms. Costa and seconded by 
Ms. Sullivan.  It was unanimously approved.   
 
Correspondence 
 
The only correspondences the advisory board has received was from Ms. Stott who informed the board she was 
unable to attend the meeting since would be on vacation.  Mr. Sylvia also was unable to attend the meeting due 
to an appointment he had.  Ms. Wallquist informed the advisory board she was unable to attend the meeting.  
 
Mr. Duarte and the board told Ms. Lee and Ms. Amaral-Lema they appreciate what they have done and that 
they offer their support to help assist them in anyway.   
 
The advisory board thanked Ms. Wilson, the editor of Senior Scope, for everything she does by writing 
informative and detailed articles in the Senior Scope which helps seniors stay knowledgeable in of what is 
happening in the community.  
 
Mr. Duarte stated this agency has come a long way with Ms. Lee and Ms. Amaral-Lema’s caring and helpful 
demeanors. 
 
The advisory board spoke about what a wonderful job the Chairman, Mr. Duarte, has been doing to help the 
New Bedford Council on Aging in any issues or concerns they have, and also my lending a helping hand to 
assist them. 
 
The next advisory board meeting will be held on Thursday, November 14th at 9:00AM. 
 
Motion to adjourn this meeting was made by Ms. Swain and seconded by Ms. Sullivan.  It was 
unanimously approved. 
 
 
 
Meeting adjourned at 10:29 AM 
 
Respectfully submitted 



 
 
      
Virginia Morrison, Secretary 


